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The next site ty be evaluated wac Locust Srove [ (223/61). Mrs, Hahn
showed slides of the house and said that it had begun as a well-proportioned
stone Federal farmhcuse ca. 1810. Extensive alterations to the building in
the last 20 years, particularly the brick veneering of the frame section,
the massive rear addition, and the insertgon of dormer windows, lessened the
building's original line. The association 'with John Hammond Riggs is of
some note, but the building no longer reflects his period of ownership.

Thomas Nash, representing the family of the owners, listed 25 major
areas of change to the house over the years and stated that the family was
vigorously opposed to designation.

MOTION: Mr. King moved that Locust Grove II not be recommended for
placement on the Master Plan because it was so greatly altered that it did
not meet any of the criteria of the Ordinance. Ms. McGuckian seconded the
motion which passed unanimously.

HPL TRanSm/TTAL- 6/8/8Y

i i issi d #23/61
ts March 1 meeting, the Commission also evaluate
Locugt ér3ve 11 andm#23/94, Avalon, both of which were found to se S0

greatly altered that they d37d not meet any of the criteria of the
Ordinance.

FPARI MISTORIAN KELGmMMERDRTION = IFRCY /987

LOCUST GROVE II (23/61): 7This house began as a well-promortioned

stone Federal farmhouse, ca. 1810. However, the alterations made to the
house in the past twenty years have severly impacted the integrity

of the historical building. The brick veneering of the frame section,
the massiveness of the rear addition, the insertion of dormer windows,
21} work to lessen the siqnificance of the building's original sophisticarion
of line. It is a situation similar to the ane described above at
Pleasant Fields, but with a building of lesser quality. The historical
associations with John ilammond Rigqgs are of sume interest, but

the building no longer aduruately reflects his neriod Of ownership.

NOT RECOMMENDED.



INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST WORKSHEET

NOMINATION FORM
for the
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES, NATIONAL PARKS_SERVICE

T2

AND/OR HiISTOmIC:

Locust Grove II

2. tocaTion - oo

STREET AND NUMSBSER:

3415 Brookeville Road

CITY OR TOWN:

Brookville
STATE COUNTY:
Maryland Montgomery
CATEGORY ACCESSIBLE
> OWNERSHIP
(Check One) S -STATUS TO THE PUBLIC
O Disrries 9 Building O Public Public Acquisition: O Occupied Yes:
Q sire ] Structure Private Q In Process &3 Uncccupied O Resrricred
O Object O Both (O Being Considered 3 Preservation work O Unrestricred
in progress No

PRESENT USE (Check One or More @s Appropriate)

Q Agriculturet O Government QO Park O Teansportation O Comments
O Commercial 3 Industrial [ Private Rasidence &) Other (Specity)

O Educarional O Mitisary O Religious :

O Entertcinment O Museum O Scientific

{4 OWNER OF PROPERTY ] ) D e

BNNER" NAME:

D. S. Nash

STREELT AND NUMBER:

20530 Georgia Avenue (Rte. 97)

CITY OR TOWN: STATE:
Brookeville Maryland
5. LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION o : T g
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, E7TC:
Montgomery County Courthouse
STRELT AND NUMBIR:
CITY OR TOWN: STATE
Rockville Maryland
__[Title Reference of Current Deed (Book & Pg., #):
6 REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURYEYS . - ‘ ‘ e
TITLE OF SUAVRY: “

Historic Sites in the Bi-County Region

‘loarz oF sURvVEY: 1969 O Federel. O Stete & County 3 Lecai

DEPOSITORY FOR BUAYEY RECORDS

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission

STRAERT AND NUMBER:

8787 Georgia Avenue

CITY OR TOWN: ) STATK:

Silver Spring ] Maryland

Q&
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Y DESCRISTION

(Check One)
CJ Exceollent Good 3 Feir O Deteriarated O Ruins O ‘Unexposed
CONDITION '
(Check One) (Check One)
B9 Altered O Uneltared O Moved Original Sire

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT 2 4D ORIGINAL (I lnown) PHYSICAL APPEARANCEK

The house was built in several_gections. The west end
is stone with a three bay facade. Tﬁe doorway in the east
bay has a transom light and panelled reveéls. The windows
are 2/2 double hung sash; the flat relieving arches are cut
stone. There is a flush gable brick chimney on the west end.

The cornice is boxed.with bed and crown mouldings.

with 6/6 double hung sash windows., On the east gable end is
a doorway with transom and sidelights.

on the north a brick wing has been added. The dormers
are being added presently.

In plan, the stone section has an end'hall and one room.
The frame end is one room also.

There is a double corn crib west of the house.

- a L

The frame end (now covered with brick:veneer) is two bays .

33
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Historic MoxtcoMeERy CoUNtyY, MARYLAND

The house of red brick laid i: Flemish bond,
has a center hall with a rear door to-the garden,
two rooms on the right with one fireplace, and
two rooms on the left, each with a fireplace; on
the second floor are four rooms without fire-
places.

The major has not been overlooked by the
D.A.R. In October, 1940, the Janet Montgomery
Chapter with fitting ceremonies placed on the
old brick wall near the front door a bronze
plaque which states: _

**Home of Samuel Wade Magruder (1732-

1792) Lieut.,, Volunteers, French and In-

dian War. Magistrate of First Court of

Montgomery County 1777, Major Mary-

land Battalion. Member of Clommittee to

effeet resolutions of First Continental Con-
gress,”’

Upon the death of Major Magruder, his son,
Llovd, inherited the estate, but became financial-
ly involved in loans, to help finance sales of
tobaeco ahroad, upon which he eould not eolleet,
and in 1838 Locust Grove was sold at Public
auction to John A. Carter, sou-in-law of Lloyd.
The mill was =old off the farm in 1833 to Wil-
liam Orndorff (his wife was Susaunah-Adams).

FARQuAR

- 201

Orndorff is deseribed by some of his descend-
ants as a spendthrift. He lost a lot of prop-
erty, and it is believed Locust Grove passed
from his hands about the time of Susannah
(Adams) Orndorff’s death in 1870. .

In 1901 the farm, containing 258 acres, was
sold to'Robert Weaver of Georgetown. After
his death in 1924 it passed by inheritance to his
son, Maurice E. Weaver. Mr. Maurice Weaver, -
who inherited this place from his father, died a
few years ago. But before his death the historie
old place was sold to Dr. John H. Solomon, the
present owner in 1961. Dr. Solomon now lives
in a modern home on the edge of the lawn and
has crected a large buildinz occupied by the
[.B.M. and is building two apartment buildings.

In a talk the anthor had with Dr. Solomon at
his llome on this historic old place, summer of
1961, the good doctor has respeet for antiques
of Montgomery County. The rugged brick
house built by Dr. Samuel Wade Magruder
nearly two centuries ago, with its assoeiations,
with a great patriot and a scat of this County
hefore the Revolutionary War still stands. The
doetor assured me that he would do what he
eould to remodel and restore the honse.

Locust Grove 11

HIS substantial stone and frame dwelling

I is less than a mile from Brookeville on

the north side of the road leading to Lay-
tonsville. It stands on a pleasing elevation
facing south. Althouzh huilt by a membor of
the Riggs family, the house has been the home
of the Howard family for over a century. The
four hundred acres surrounding it are part of
Bordley’s Chotee and include those parts which
John Riges devised to his son=. .JJohn and Flisha,
in 1762,

Farly rvecords indicate that Elisha Riggs,
born October 4, 1742, lived in this locality, pos-
siblv with older brothers, as early as 1761,
About the vwear 1771, he married Carolina
Welsh. Flisha Riggs was quite active in the
Flyving Camp, that notable component of the
Maryland Line, and the archives coutain inter-
esting references to his military career.

Farly in 1776 he was captain of a company of
dragoons with the Flying C'amp. His commander
wrote to the Council of Safety, at Aunnapolis,
saying that his disposition *does honour to him
as an American.’”” The young eavalryvman’s
carecr was soon over; he made his will on May
17, and died less than a month later on June 6,
1777. IHe left his widow with five small echil-
dren. The widowed C('arolina married Jacob
Holland 1n 1781, and died a few years later.

Jolin Hammond Rizgs, a son, born Mareh 5,
1773, seems to have eventually acquired title to
the Bordley’s Choiee property. Althongh Cap-
tain Klisha Riggs left his children equal por-
tions, to this he added other land, willed by a
bachelor unele, Licutenant John Riggs, who died
in 1808. The estate whiech he developed
amounted to about 300 acres. Ilere he estab-
lished his plantation before the death of his
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Locust Grove II (Howard Housel)l= 23/61, proposed for inclusion in the
Mont gomery County Master Plan for Historic Preservation.

Grounds for objection:
1. Not architectually significant due to chanpes.
2. Other more significant houses. . .

3. Farmlarnd not significant, thus should be excluded from site.
4. No compensation or benefit to property owner.

1. This property was acquired by the Nash family in 197@. At that time there
had not been any plumbing, central heating, electricity or telechone installed
in the house, facilities having been provided by a well and a privy located
rnear the house at the northeasterly side. The entire house was in substantial
disrepair, vandalized and particularly, in the east section, sills and joists
were rotted, floors and ceilings were sagging.

Remodelling included:

installed plumbing, heating,electricity,telephone & rencvated the interior
replaced front door

removed all other doorways, placed in new locations with replacemert doors
replaced all windows in house using different number of lights or size of sash
installed 23 windows where there had been rnorne

three dormers were added to the fronmt of the two sections

three dormers were added to west of the rear section

frame sections were brick verneered on all sides

rear section was extended to west to partly wrap around storne section

rear lower wall was extended to north

three car parage was built into structure at rear under old wing and addition
chimney was removed from east end of frort and cap was built on roof
chimrey was remcved from center of rear section

chimrey was added to rear of east section in fromt of rear section

removed front porch and rebuilt irn different configuration ard location
added large porch on east side of brick section

added porch on west side of rear section

added large terrace-balcony to rear of brick section

relocated drive and built rnew circular drive around entire house

paved a portion of drive with brick, gravel on balance

chariged grade 1irn rear by removirng two terraces

added large stone retaining wall across entire rear of residerice

removed large shed roof sectiocn or east side

added frame wood shed on west of store section

removed some bushes and trees

planted bushes and trees

2. Other more significant examples of Federal architecture abournd irn Mortgomery
County, substantially urnchanged. Mr. Mark Walston, Fark Historian, MNCREC,
(Marylarnd Natioral Capital Park and Flarming Commission, or Plarming Board)
considers #23/69, Riggs House and Brookeville Woolen Mill in Brockeville, and
#2379, Elton, Eltorn Farm Road, near Sunshine, as structures in good condition,
and properly preserved irv an original state lying ivn the pereral vicinity of
Locust Grove 1I. He cites these as only two of over ten guch Federal style
houses riow o the Historic Master Flarn or presently recaommerced for inclusion.



There are about a half dozen octher Federal style homes in the town of
Brookeville, all of which are being maintained in good repailr. These are all
in the Brookeville historic district.

Designation for the Master Plan should be limited to the better examples of
unaltered structures which will properly represent the character and
architecture of the period and style being ekhibited.

3. Even if Locust Grove II in its present condition should be recommended for
inclusion in the Master Plan (and that is not admitted here), the farmland of
over 300 acres acquired with the house should not be included in the
designation. The land has no separate identity or significance, historical or
otherwise. I have a sketch of the house, with topographical lines on a two
hundred foot scale, on which has been lined in red a suggested site not to
exceed 300'X 3200', or approximately two acres, as representing a feasible site
for the house. This includes land to the tree lires, and follows generally the
423" elevation line. Zoning presently allows sites of one acre each. This two
acre plus site is suggested as quite adequate. Access is provided by roadways
to Brookeville Road and to the center of the farm. These are not irncluded as
they are given quantities and at most might be altered only as to locatior.

4. Designation for inclusion in the Master Plan amd the restrictions placed on
the property constitute a taking of private property without compensation. It

is suggested that offering praperty ocwners a quid pro gus is in order. This
could be done without a cash outlay by the County arng it could erngender support
by some property owners for the program. This property is in a TDR sending

area, has an allowble building density of cne unit for each 25 acres, and has
one TDR for each 3 acres of land.

a. An appropriate bonus could be given througnh increased density, by
granting two units instead of orie for each 29 acres, or part thereof, of a
designated historical site, to be used on the portion not desigrnated as
historical, and by granting an increase to two TDR’s instead of crne for each
five acres or a part therecof, included in the site, to be sold for use on other
property.

b. There could be an aternative use for a historic site itself other than
those now allowed under the zoning code, such as allowirng by right multi-family
housing in what was formerly a single family home, offices for doctors,
lawyers, engineers, land planners, and related fields, and limited retail uses
such as an antique shop.

C. There should be an abatemernt of real estate taxes attributable to a
property desigpnated as a historical resource. '

5. Mr. Mark Walston, Fark Historiarn for MNCRFC, volunteered that he may be
quoted as objecting to the recommendation of Locust Grove I1 for inclusion in
the Master Plan for Historic Preservatiorn, and that he will so report to yvou.
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—ocust Grove 11 (Howard House)= 23/61, oroposea for inclusion in the
Tomtpomery County Master Flanm for Historic Preservation.

Remodelling, after acaouisition in 1978, included:
. ‘
:nstalled plumbing, heatirng,electricity,telephorne & rerncvated the interior
~eplaced frant door v '
emaved all other doorwavs, placed in rnew locations with replacement doors
‘eplaced all windows in house using different rnumber of lights or size of sash
nstalled 23 windows where there had beer none
hree dormers were added to the front of the two sectionms
“hree dormers were added to west of the rear section
rame sectiorns were brick veneered on all sides
“ear sectiorn was extended to west to partly wrap around stone section
-ear lower wall was extended to north '
“nree car parage was buillt into structure at rear under old wing and adod:tiaon
himney was removed from east end of front and cap was built onm roaf
nimrey was removed from center of rear section
himrney was added to rear of past section in front of rear section
enaved fromt porch and rebuilt in different confipuration anmd locaticom
dced larps porch on 2ast side of brick section
‘dded paorch o west side of rear section
dded large terrace-balcony to rear of brick sectiaon
‘elocated drive anc Huilt rniew circualar drive arcund entire house
aved a portiorn of drive with brick, Sravel or balarnce
hangeag grade in rear by renoving tws terraces
dded larpge storne reftziving wall aoross entire rear of residence
emoved large shed yoof sectiorn on east side
dded frame woiod shed on west of store section
2moaved some bushes and trees

ianted ashes ang trees

oo



